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PART B – SOLICITATION EXHIBITS 
 

Exhibit Description 
1  Fixed Unit Rate Proposal Form 

2  Organizational Conflict of Interest Disclosure 

3  Agreement Exceptions 

4  Vendor ESH&Q Requirements Questionnaire 
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EXHIBIT 1. FIXED UNIT RATE PRICE PROPOSAL FORM 

 

 See attached excel price proposal form 
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING THE PRICE PROPOSAL FORM 

 

A. The Solicitation Compensation Schedule may be converted to a Subcontract 
Compensation Schedule if the Tank Operating Contractor (WRPS) makes an award.  

 
B. Under “Labor,” enter the proposed names or labor categories as well as the estimated 

hours, and fully burdened rates.  Lines in the spreadsheet can be added or deleted as 
needed.  The totals are automatically computed. 

 
C. The WRPS Direct Pay Permit will not apply to the resultant subcontract/purchase order.  

Therefore, the Offeror’s price shall include all applicable Federal, State, county, 
municipal, or other taxes.  For information relating to Sales and Use Tax in Washington 
State please reference the following website: http://dor.wa.gov/content/home/.  Offeror 
shall list separately, in this Compensation Schedule, any such tax applicable to any 
goods/service payable by WRPS.  

 
D. This form may be modified to add additional labor categories and multiple pages may be 

used to show additional option years. 
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EXHIBIT 2. ORGANIZATIONAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST  

CERTIFICATION AND DISCLOSURE 
 Rev. 3 6/22/16 

Organizational conflict of interest means that because of other activities or relationships 
with other persons, a person is unable or potentially unable to render impartial 
assistance or advice to the Government or WRPS, or the person’s objectivity in 
performing the contract work is or might be otherwise impaired, or a person has an 
unfair competitive advantage. 

 
It is WRPS's policy to avoid situations, which place an Offeror in a position wherein it may not be 
able to compete on an equal basis for WRPS-controlled work with other qualified Offerors. This 
representation, and the information disclosed thereby, will serve to advise WRPS whether or not an 
Offeror's judgment may be biased because of any past, present, or currently planned interest, 
financial or otherwise, the Offeror may have or appear to have which relates to the work to be 
performed under a subcontract which may result from this solicitation, thus providing the Offeror 
an unfair competitive advantage over others.  The term "Offeror" herein means the proposing 
entity or any of its affiliates or proposed consultants or subcontractors of any tier.  Therefore: 
 
Offeror shall provide WRPS a statement which describes in a concise manner, all relevant facts 
concerning any past, present, or currently planned interest (financial, contractual, organizational, or 
otherwise) relating to the work described in the statement of work of this solicitation.  Offeror may 
also provide relevant facts that show how its organizational structure and/or management systems 
limit its knowledge of affiliates or other divisions or sections of the proposing entity and how that 
structure or system would avoid or mitigate an organizational conflict of interest.   
 
Offeror shall assure that any consultants and/or subcontractors identified in its proposal which will 
perform part or all of any resulting subcontract submit the same information as required above, 
either as part of the Offeror’s proposal or directly to WRPS, prior to the time and date set forth for 
the receipt of proposals, including identification of the solicitation number and the (Offeror's) 
proposal to which it relates. 
 
Offeror shall assure that each of its chief officers or directors, if any, who will be directly involved 
in the actual performance of the subcontract, submit such information. 
 
Offeror shall promptly provide to WRPS information concerning any changes, including additions, 
in its relevant facts reported, that occur between the time of submission of its proposal and the 
award of a subcontract or the time the Offeror is notified that it is no longer being considered for an 
award.  
 
WRPS will review the information submitted and may require additional relevant information or 
certifications from the Offeror.  All such information, and any other relevant information known to 
WRPS, will be used to determine whether an award to the Offeror may create an organizational 
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conflict of interest with respect to the Offeror's (1) bias caused by financial, contractual, 
organizational, or other interests which relate to the work to be performed under the subcontract, 
resulting in Offeror being unable to render impartial, technically sound, and objective assistance or 
advice, or (2)obtaining an unfair competitive advantage over other parties.  If WRPS determines a 
conflict exists which would require some action to mitigate an actual or potential conflict of 
interest that would otherwise represent an unacceptable risk to WRPS, it may, at its sole discretion:  
(1) impose appropriate terms or conditions necessary to avoid or mitigate the conflict, (2) 
disqualify the offer, or (3) proceed with an award despite the conflict. 
 
Offeror refusal to submit the representation and/or to provide the disclosure or any additional 
information requested by WRPS may result in disqualification of the Offeror for an award.  
Misrepresentation of material facts or other reported information may also result in 
disqualification.  If any such misrepresentation is discovered following award, WRPS may 
terminate the contract for default or seek other remedies including actions pursuant to 
18 U.S.C. 1001. 
 
Depending on the nature of the subcontract activities, Offeror may, because of the existence of 
possible organizational conflicts of interest, propose to exclude specific kinds of work from the 
statement of work contained in the original solicitation, unless the solicitation specifically prohibits 
such exclusion.  Any proposed exclusion may be considered by WRPS in the evaluation of 
proposals, but may ultimately determine the proposal to be unacceptable. 
 
No work shall be performed, and WRPS will not authorize work to begin, until representations and 
disclosure information has been evaluated.  WRPS may also, at its option, permit missing 
representations or disclosure information to be provided by an Offeror at any time during the pre-
award process. 
 
In lieu of or in addition to the above and/or when requested by WRPS, Offeror shall provide a 
certification similar to the following, altered only to reflect the relevant facts: 
 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE STATEMENT 
 
I hereby certify that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, no facts exist relevant to any past, 
present, or currently planned interest or activity (financial, contractual, personal, organizational, 
or otherwise) that relate to the proposed work; and bear on whether I and the Offeror have a 
possible conflict of interest with respect to being able to render impartial, technically sound, and 
objective assistance or advice, or being given unfair competitive advantage. 
 
__________________________________  _____________________Authorized 
Offeror Representative   Date 
 



  SOLICITATION NO: 363875 

   

 6 of 8 

EXHIBIT 3. AGREEMENT EXCEPTIONS  

NOTICE:  Any exceptions to the proposed subcontract terms and conditions must be indicated below.  Washington River 
Protection Solutions, however, reserves the right to disqualify offers which deviate from the Solicitation.  If the offeror has no 
exceptions, please write “None” below.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NAME AND ADDRESS OF OFFEROR NAME OF SIGNER 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TITLE OF SIGNER 

OFFEROR (Signature of person authorized to sign) 

 DATE 
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EXHIBIT 4.  VENDOR ESH&Q QUESTIONNAIRE 
Subcontractor Name:      
Subcontractor Address:            
City:           State:           Zip:       
Subcontractor Point of Contact:       
Email:       
All contractors working on the Hanford Site are expected to safely perform in a quality 
manner while protecting worker health and the environment. Please answer the following 
questions about how your company implements ESH&Q. 

# Question 

1. Does your company have a documented environmental, occupational safety, healthy and quality program that 
complies with applicable local, state, federal, and DOE regulatory requirements? 

  Yes:   No:  

 

Required: Attach Table of Contents to this form.  

2. Are your employees trained and equipped to perform their assigned work? 

  Yes:   No:  

3. Does your company have policies and procedures in place to eliminate accidents, injuries/illness, and damage to 
property and equipment? 

  Yes:   No:  

4. Are company ESH&Q records adequately and properly maintained? 

  Yes:   No:  

5. Are accidents/incidents investigated promptly and reports generated? 

  Yes:   No:  

6. Do your employees have the right to report unsafe conditions and to interrupt or stop work without fear of reprisal? 

  Yes:   No:  

7. Is the frequency of ESH&Q meetings with employees scheduled to discuss the work to be performed hazards 
associated with the work based on the scope of work and commensurate with the work hazards? 

  Yes:   No:  

8. Are ESH&Q inspections/audits conducted to evaluate the effectiveness of your program? 

  Yes:   No:  

9. Does your company have an average Experience Modification Rate (EMR) of 1.0 or less for the previous three years? 

  Yes:   No:     What is your EMR?      

 

Required: Attach a letter from Workers’ Compensation carrier stating EMR for 3 most recent years. 
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10. Does your company have an average Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) Recordable Case Rate 
of 3.2 or less for the previous three years? 

  Yes:   No:      What is your Recordable Case rate?       

 

Required: Attach OSHA 300 logs to this form. 

11. Does your company have an average OSHA Lost Workday case rate of 0.64 or less for the previous three years? 

  Yes:   No:     What is your OSHA Lost Workday case rate?       

 

Required: OSHA 300 logs to this form. 

12. Does your construction company have an average OSHA Lost Workday case rate of 3.0 or less for the previous three 
years? 

  Yes:   No:      What is your OSHA Lost Workday case rate?       

 

Required: Attach OSHA 300 logs to this form. 

13. Has your company been cited for a(n) willful violation(s) from any regulatory agency during the previous three 
years? 

  Yes:   No:  

 


